
 
 

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Scrutiny Committee for Housing, Planning 
and Economic Growth 

held on Wednesday, 22nd January, 2020 
from 7.00  - 8.42 pm 

 
 

Present: N Walker (Chair) 
C Laband (Vice-Chair) 

 
 

R Bates 
P Brown 
R Cromie 
 

R Eggleston 
S Hatton 
A Peacock 
 

C Phillips 
R Webb 
 

 
Absent: Councillors M Belsey, E Coe-Gunnell White, S Hicks, G Marsh and J Mockford 
 
 
Also Present 
as Cabinet 
Members: 

Councillors S Hillier and A MacNaughton 

 
 

1 TO NOTE SUBSTITUTES IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE 
RULE 4 - SUBSTITUTES AT MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES ETC.  
 
Councillor Gibbs substituted for Councillor Hicks and Councillor Dabell substituted for 
Councillor Mockford. 
 

2 TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  
 
Apologies were received from Councillors M Belsey, Coe-Gunnell White, Hicks, 
Marsh and Mockford. 
 

3 TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT 
OF ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.  
 
Councillor Phillips declared a personal interest in Item 7: Site Allocations 
Development Plan Document - Response to Draft Site Allocations DPD Consultation 
(Regulation 18) as he had submitted an objection in the consultation in relation to 
SA4 - North A264, Copthorne.  
 
Councillor Brown declared a personal interest in Item 8: Mid Sussex Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning Document - Outcome of Public Consultation as he had 
submitted a number of comments in the consultation. 
 

4 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE FOR HOUSING, PLANNING AND ECONOMIC GROWTH HELD ON 
23 OCTOBER 2019.  
 
As indicated in the Minutes of the Meeting held on 23 October, the Chairman 
confirmed that the Council’s work with Homes England on the Northern Arc is not a 
matter for the Scrutiny Committee at this time. He understood that if Member wanted 



 
 

 
 

to become more familiar with the Council’s work with Homes England on the 
Northern Arc then officers will provide briefings. 
 
Cllr Brown sought clarification on who would be the contact for questions on that 
matter. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that it would be the Assistant Chief Executive, Judy 
Holmes. 

 
 

5 TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN AGREES TO TAKE AS 
URGENT BUSINESS.  
 
None. 
 

6 PARKING STRATEGY  
 
Claire Onslow, Business Unit Leader for Parking Services, introduced the report 
which provided the Scrutiny Committee with an update on the work of the Parking 
Strategy Member Working Group. She highlighted that the report provides a 
summary of the ‘Discovery’ and ‘Challenge’ phases of this work. The ‘Discovery’ 
phase involved a review of all aspects of the existing service and benchmarking 
against other services; the ‘Challenge’ phase built on the findings of the Discovery 
work to start challenging current policy and operations and to develop a future 
strategy and action plan. 
 
She noted that next stage is the ‘Design’ phase which will be discussed later this 
quarter; and that a draft Parking Strategy report will be presented to the Committee in 
March 2020. 
 
A Member felt that the report was absent of any information and that they therefore 
could not approve the recommendation. 
 
Robert Anderton, Divisional Leader for Commercial Services & Contracts, confirmed 
that when the Parking Strategy Member Working Group was created, it was stated 
that their work would be reported back to the Scrutiny Committee. He added that the 
report is just an update which sets out the high-level work the Working Group has 
been carrying out and that the Committee are only being asked to note the report. 
 
A Member enquired whether the ‘design phase’ will explore employing more 
technology into the car parks to make them more interactive and improve the 
customer experience. 
 
The Business Unit Leader for Parking Services stated that the Draft Parking Strategy 
report will set out the strategic position, potentially exploring the implementation of 
further technology and will be a key part of the work to meet the Economic Growth 
Strategy. 
 
The Chairman then moved to the recommendation to note the contents of the report 
which was agreed unanimously. 
  
RESOLVED 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the report. 
 



 
 

 
 

7 SITE ALLOCATIONS DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT - RESPONSE TO 
DRAFT SITE ALLOCATIONS DPD CONSULTATION (REGULATION 18)  
 
The Chairman invited the Solicitor, Franca Currall to provide legal context and advice 
for Members whom sit on the Committee and have made representations on the Site 
Allocations Development Plan document.  
 
Franca Currall, Solicitor, highlighted that Members are welcome to make 
representations. She noted that the Committee is not a decision-making committee 
however she reminded Members to be aware of their roles when participating in the 
discussion as it can preclude them from taking part in the meeting and potentially 
cause them to be pre-determined. She asked that, in the spirit of openness and 
transparency, Members indicate where they have made representations before they 
make comments. 
 
Andrew Marsh, Business Unit Leader for Planning Policy, introduced the report which 
provided a summary of the representations received during the Site Allocations DPD 
public consultation and set out the next steps in the preparation of the Site 
Allocations DPD. He noted that there were just over 1,300 respondents to the 
consultation. Objections were predominantly from residents to the proposed sites 
however there were no objections to the site selection methodology and indeed no 
objections from neighboring authorities. He stated that the next stage is Regulation 
19 which will be presented at the Committee on 11 March 2020 and then, subject to 
Council approval, will go through a minimum six-week consultation before being 
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination by an independent Planning 
Inspector. 
 
A Member noted that site promoters have submitted 28 ‘new’ sites that were not in 
the Strategic Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment (SHELAA). He 
enquired whether all 28 sites are for housing developments. 
 
The Business Unit Leader for Planning Policy confirmed that 9 are employments 
sites and remainder are housing sites. 
 
The Member felt that it would useful to have a quantum of the number of houses in 
the sites in the report.  
 
Judy Holmes, Assistant Chief Executive, explained that the purpose of the report is to 
present the responses from the consultation and the subsequent steps to be carried 
out. The next report will detail how the Council will address the sites that have been 
put forward and outline further work undertaken in response to the representations. 
 
A Member questioned what additional transport assessments will be carried out as 
part of the Site Allocations work.  
 
The Business Unit Leader for Planning Policy noted that the Regulation 18 Document 
contained a strategic transport assessment which assessed the impacts from the 
sites in the draft DPD. As noted in the Scrutiny report, the next steps section 
identifies an update to the strategic transport assessment to address comments 
made during the consultation.  
 
A Member noted that the consultation exercise has identified additional sites and 
enquired whether the site selection methodology used to assess these sites will be 
different to the methodology previously used.  He feared that the identified sites 
would not get the same level of scrutiny. 



 
 

 
 

 
Sally Blomfield, the Divisional Leader for Planning and Economy confirmed that the 
Council will be applying the same site selection methodology which was considered 
previously by the Scrutiny Committee. She added that the process will be transparent 
and open to scrutiny by the Committee at the Regulation 19 stage.  
 
In relation to SA12 – 96 Folders Lane, Burgess Hill & SA13 – South of Folders Lane, 
Burgess Hill, a Member enquired whether a site-specific Transport Assessment will 
consider the 500 dwellings proposed at Clayton Mills, Hassocks as all the traffic will 
exit onto Ockley Lane. 
 
The Business Unit Leader for Planning Policy explained that the transport 
assessment accounts for all current commitments (allocated sites and those with 
planning permission) therefore would include the site at Clayton Mills, Hassocks. The 
Actions to Address Objections listed in Appendix 1 for each site identifies  additional 
work that will need to be done by site promoters; this includes site-specific Transport 
Assessments. 
 
A Member highlighted that he had publicly spoken against the sites SA12 & SA13 
due to the concerns of the impact of increased traffic and the erosion of the strategic 
gap. He noted that the District Council and the Town have a considerable difference 
of opinion and questioned whether independent advice should be sought. 
 
The Divisional Leader for Planning and Economy explained that whilst the transport 
work is commissioned by the Council, the work is carried out by specialist Transport 
consultants, SYSTRA, in close co-operation with the Highways Authority; West 
Sussex County Council. She added that Highways England had been consulted and 
did not raise an objection during the consultation. It was also noted that the work will 
ultimately be reviewed by an Inspector who is employed by the Planning 
Inspectorate. 
 
A Member noted that SA20 – Imberhorne Lane, East Grinstead is the largest 
development contained in the report and has been ear-marked for housing for a long 
time. He expressed an interest in the transport assessment for the site and enquired 
whether it will be presented at the next stage. 
 
The Divisional Leader for Planning and Economy confirmed that the strategic 
transport assessment is already available on the Council’s website and that the 
report would be updated ahead of the next stage. 
 
A Member stated that he hoped the further report on SA21 – Rogers Farm, Fox Hill, 
Haywards Heath will consider the recent traffic collisions that have occurred in the 
area and an air pollution study. The Vice-Chairman confirmed that those issues were 
also raised at the recent meeting of Haywards Heath Town Council. 
 
A Member noted that the penultimate paragraph for SA28 – Land South of The Old 
Police House, Birchgrove Road, Horsted Keynes refers to an assessment that is 
required to determine whether the development is major development. He sought 
clarification on the criteria that would cause a development to be considered major. 
 
The Business Unit Leader for Planning Policy confirmed that there is no specific 
threshold for what is considered a major development and that it was based on a 
number of factors. Officers are carrying out this assessment ahead of Regulation 19 
stage as indicated in the Next Steps section of the Scrutiny Report. 
 



 
 

 
 

A Member noted fears from residents that their front gardens may be taken under the 
use of Compulsory Purchase in order to facilitate the Multifunctional Network (SA37). 
He sought assurances that the Council will not use this power to facilitate the 
network. 
 
The Divisional Leader for Planning and Economy stated that the Council will not use 
that power and highlighted that the wording of the policy will be amended to give 
reassurances to residents. 
 
A Member iterated the need for a cycle route from Bolnore Village, Haywards Heath 
to the proposed Northern Arc development. 
 
A Member stated that the vision of a cycle highway may have concerned a number of 
residents on Theobalds Road and stressed the need for a balance between cycle 
users and equestrian users. 
 
The Divisional Leader for Planning and Economy replied that the policy seeks to 
implement an aspiration of the Town Council and also sets out a number of options 
for safeguarding. She added that the safety element for all types of users will be 
considered and then reported through the Burgess Hill Growth Programme 
governance arrangements. 
 
A Member believed that the narrow width of the cycle way would eventually need to 
be widened in future to accommodate the increase of users on the path, but the 
Council in the policy commits to not using Compulsory Purchase powers. He 
enquired whether the Burgess Hill Place and Connectivity report will address those 
concerns. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive confirmed that the Council has commissioned 
specialist consultants to advise on the route and that the Council will bring forward 
the initiative within the existing infrastructure. She added that the Burgess Hill Place 
and Connectivity project will indeed address the concerns. 
 
Councillor Andrew MacNaughton, Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning, 
reminded the Committee that the Council was instructed to carry out this work by the 
Inspector to ensure the five-year land supply. He noted that the Council will soon 
need to review the District Plan and subsequently all sites again. He believed that the 
document had come a long way however there was still work to be done ahead of 
examination and adoption. 
 
The Chairman then moved to the recommendation to consider the comments 
received during the public consultation on the Draft Site Allocations DPD and 
supporting documentation and to note the additional work required and the next 
steps ahead of the Regulation 19 stage which was agreed unanimously. 

 
RESOLVED 
 

The Scrutiny Committee for Housing, Planning and Economic Growth: 
 
(i) Considered the comments received during the public consultation on the Draft 

Site Allocations DPD and supporting documentation; and 
 
(ii) Noted the additional work required and the next steps ahead of the 

Regulation 19 stage. 
 



 
 

 
 

8 MID SUSSEX DESIGN GUIDE SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT - 
OUTCOME OF PUBLIC CONSULTATION.  
 
Alma Howell, Senior Planning Officer, introduced the report which informed Members 
of the outcome to the public consultation on the draft Mid Sussex Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) which took place from 9th October until 
20th November 2019. She noted that most of the comments from the statutory 
bodies and local councils are complimentary of the Guide. The main issues that were 
raised in the consultation were; Detailed Design Issues, Sustainability and the 
Structure and Format of the document.  
 
A Member referenced Paragraph 26, Point 3 on P.81 and enquired whether that 
statement means the Council cannot do anything to implement new carbon reduction 
standards through planning policies. 
 
Sally Blomfield, Divisional Leader for Planning and Economy, stated that the Council 
cannot impose new standards, which might affect costs for developers through 
Supplementary Planning Documents. 
 
A Member highlighted that on P.87 it makes reference to Village Design statements 
and sought clarification on what they are. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer confirmed that the documents have been in place for a 
number of years and before Neighbourhood Plans were introduced. They set out 
design details and materials that are locally distinctive for a village.  Some of the 
Neighbourhood Plans refer to these in their Design Policy. 
 
Councillor Andrew MacNaughton, Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning, added 
that Lindfield, Turners Hill and Hassocks have prepared a Village Design Statement.  
 
The Vice-Chairman noted that on P.89 in the Appendix summarising comments, it 
states that the guide lacks any reference to ground source heat pumps and sought 
guidance as to why. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning made the observation that in many 
cases, dwellings do not have enough space for a ground source pump. The Design 
Guide does however refer to both ground or air source heat pumps for heating. 
 
The Chairman then moved to the recommendation; to note the responses to the 
public consultation on the draft Mid Sussex Design Guide SPD, as set out in 
Appendix 1 to report; consider and agree the Officer recommended actions to 
address the issues that have been raised and note the next steps as set out in 
paragraph 31; which was agreed unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
The Scrutiny Committee for Housing, Planning and Economic Growth: 
 

(i) Noted the responses to the public consultation on the draft Mid 
Sussex Design Guide SPD, as set out in Appendix 1 to this report; 

 
(ii) Considered and agreed the Officer recommended actions to address 

the issues that have been raised; and 
 

(i) Noted the next steps as set out in paragraph 31. 



 
 

 
 

 
 

9 HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY 2016 - 2021  
 
Emma Shuttleworth, Business Unit Leader for Housing Services, introduced the 
report which sought the Scrutiny Committee the Committee’s approval to recommend 
the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025 to Council for adoption. 
She noted that the recent Homeless Reduction Act requires a review of the current 
strategy.  
 
A Member enquired whether the baseline figures and indicators can be advised, and 
whether it would be appropriate for the information to be reported quarterly rather 
than annually. 
 
Judy Holmes, Assistant Chief Executive, stated that the baseline figures and 
indicators are already reported to the Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and 
Performance.  She added that Members can request reports at any time through the 
Work Programme. She directed the Member’s attention to the volumes of data in 
Homelessness Review 2019 document which is hyperlinked in the report. 
 
Councillor Andrew MacNaughton, Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning, noted 
that performance information is reported to the Cabinet meeting and through the 
weekly Member Information Service. 
 
Post meeting note: It is not included on MIS 
 
A Member noted that on P.99, rough sleepers are assisted through the Turning Tides 
outreach service and enquired whether the service is commissioned and funded by 
the District Council. 
 
The Business Unit Leader for Housing Services confirmed that the funding is 
provided by Central Government and is commissioned by both the County and 
District Councils to reduce rough sleeping. 
 
The Member then asked whether the service is totally reliant on the funds provided 
by the Government. 
 
The Business Unit Leader for Housing Services highlighted that it is however, the 
Government have committed to make the funding available and continue to fund. 
She explained that if funding were to be withdrawn then the Council would work with 
partners to explore options. She noted that Turning Tides is a charity and does have 
a fundraising arm. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning stated that Housing Officers do go 
out in the District to look for rough sleepers and recently found two who have been 
taken off the street. He added that the District was very lucky to have very few rough 
sleepers however he felt that it was tragic to even see a few on the streets. 
 
The Chairman then moved to the recommendation to recommend to Council that the 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-25 be adopted which was agreed 
unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
The Scrutiny Committee for Housing, Planning and Economic Growth: 



 
 

 
 

 
(i) Commented on the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025 
 
(ii) Recommended to Council that the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 

Strategy 2020-25 be adopted 
 

10 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR HOUSING, PLANNING AND ECONOMIC GROWTH 
- WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20.  
 
Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services, introduced the Committee’s Work 
Programme for the forthcoming meetings on 11 March 2020 and 25 March 2020. 
 
The Chairman noted that no Member wished to comment on the Work Programme 
and so moved to the recommendation to note the Committee’s Work Programme 
which was agreed unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
The Committee noted the Committee’s Work Programme as set out at paragraph 5 of 
the tabled report.  
 

11 QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10, DUE NOTICE OF 
WHICH HAS BEEN GIVEN.  
 
Councillor Janice Henwood posed a number of questions to the Officers in relation 
Item 7: Site Allocations Development Plan Document - Response to Draft Site 
Allocations DPD Consultation (Regulation 18). Firstly, she noted that Systra Strategic 
Transport Assessment has identified no site-specific issues and enquired who Systra 
is.  
 
Judy Holmes, Assistant Chief Executive, replied that Systra are transport consultants 
commissioned by Mid Sussex District Council (MSDC) and West Sussex County 
Council (WSCC) to produce the Mid Sussex Transport Study (MSTS) and test the 
impact of proposed development in the draft Site Allocations DPD on the strategic 
and local transport network. 
 
Councillor Henwood questioned how assured the community can be if site-specific 
Transport Assessments are being carried out by the site promotors.  
 
The Assistant Chief Executive explained that where the community has raised 
specific local transport issues, it is common practice for Councils to ask site 
promoters to engage in pre-application discussions with West Sussex County 
Council (WSCC) as the Highways Authority. 
 
Councillor Henwood then sought clarification on when the Strategic Transport 
Assessment will be available for Burgess Hill Town Council and Residents, with 
reference to its assessment of the present impact of housing, the future impact of 
additional housing and the mitigations proposed to cope with traffic flows. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive noted that it is available on the Council’s website (Site 
Allocations DPD – Evidence Library - https://www.midsussex.gov.uk/planning-
building/development-plan-documents/site-allocations-dpd-evidence-library/).  
 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2Fplanning-building%2Fdevelopment-plan-documents%2Fsite-allocations-dpd-evidence-library%2F&data=02%7C01%7CJudy.Holmes%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C63357c0ee50c4fbecb5408d79f242580%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637152849920420839&sdata=E8nXoq8avejm8azt9c15bU4Vh%2B3nGtiM6QKruie96kg%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2Fplanning-building%2Fdevelopment-plan-documents%2Fsite-allocations-dpd-evidence-library%2F&data=02%7C01%7CJudy.Holmes%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C63357c0ee50c4fbecb5408d79f242580%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637152849920420839&sdata=E8nXoq8avejm8azt9c15bU4Vh%2B3nGtiM6QKruie96kg%3D&reserved=0


 
 

 
 

Councillor Henwood finally queried how the assessment will address the east-west; 
north-south traffic flows in Burgess Hill with particular reference to the roundabouts at 
Keymer Road and Folders Lane: at Hoadleys Corner: Junction Road-Leylands Road. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive responded that the scope of the MSTS and the 
strategic transport model which underpins the MSTS has been agreed by WSCC in 
accordance with good practice as set out by the Department of Transports 
guidelines. The purpose of the MSTS is to assess the impact of the Sites DPD on the 
highway network, based on the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and 
agreed by WSCC and MSDC. Where junctions are identified as being ‘severely’ 
impacted as a result of the Sites DPD, mitigation schemes are devised and tested to 
remove the severe impact.  
 
The MSTS concluded that the junction at Folders Lane and Keymer Road even 
without any mitigation is not identified as being ‘severely’ impacted as a result of the 
Sites DPD. Impacts at the other two junctions referred to are mitigated by traffic 
reduction from sustainable measures and highway mitigation elsewhere in the 
network (namely at the A23/A2300 junctions) and are therefore identified as not 
severely impacted with mitigation.  
 

 
 
 

The meeting finished at 8.42 pm 
 

Chairman 
 


